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Independent auditor’s report 

To the Honourable Minister of Land Management, Water and Sanitation Services 

 

Our opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Water 
Utilities Corporation (the “Corporation”) as at 31 March 2021, and of its financial performance and 
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(“IFRS”). 
 
What we have audited 
Water Utilities Corporation’s financial statements set out on pages 9 to 45 comprise:  
● the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021; 
● the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended; 
● the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; 
● the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and 
● the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.  

 

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the 
audit of the financial statements section of our report.  

 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.  
 
Independence 

We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code) issued by 
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants and other independence requirements 
applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Botswana. We have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code and other ethical requirements applicable to 
performing audits of financial statements in Botswana. 
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Our audit approach 
 
Overview                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

 

Overall materiality 
● Overall materiality: P 9 625 804, which represents 4.5% of the 

four-year average profit/loss before tax and tariff subsidy income. 

Key Audit Matters 

● Impairment of trade receivables.  

 
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material 
misstatement in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where the directors made 
subjective judgements; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that involved 
making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain. As in all of our 
audits, we also addressed the risk of management override of internal controls, including among other 
matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of bias that represented a risk of material 
misstatement due to fraud.  
 
Materiality 
The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. An audit is designed to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
Misstatements may arise due to fraud or error. They are considered material if individually or in 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of the financial statements. 

 
Based on our professional judgement, we determined certain quantitative thresholds for materiality, 
including the overall materiality for the financial statements as a whole as set out in the table below. 
These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the 
nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of misstatements, both 
individually and in aggregate on the financial statements as a whole. 
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Overall materiality P 9 625 804 

How we determined it 4.5% of the four-year average profit/ loss before tax and tariff subsidy 
income. 

Rationale for the 
materiality 
benchmark applied 

We chose the four-year average profit/loss before tax and tariff subsidy 
income as the benchmark because, in our view, it is the benchmark 
against which the performance of the Corporation is most commonly 
measured by users of the financial statements. An average of profit 
before tax and tariff subsidy income for the past 4 years was used and 
determined to be more appropriate because of the volatility in the 
Corporation’s operating profits before tax and tariff subsidy.  
 
 We chose 4.5% based on professional judgement and after 
consideration of the range of quantitative materiality thresholds that 
would typically apply when using the four-year average profit/loss 
before tax to compute materiality. The considerations include taking 
cognisance of the intended users of the financial statements, audits of 
similar entities, and the Corporation’s level of external debt. 

 
 

 

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in 
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we 
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  

 

Key audit matter  How our audit addressed the key audit 
matter 

Impairment loss of trade receivables 

(All amounts in Pula ‘000) 
 
At 31 March 2021 the Corporation recognised trade 
receivables of P 320 372 (2020: P 339 426)after 
deducting expected credit losses (“ECL”) of P 697 
606 (2020: P 461 747). 
 
The Corporation applies the simplified approach 
allowed by International Financial Reporting 
Standards 9 Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) and 
recognises lifetime ECL for all trade receivables. To 
measure the ECL, trade receivables have been 
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics 
within customer type. 
 

We performed the following audit procedures on 
the ECL provision for impairment on trade and 
other receivables: 
 

● We obtained an understanding of relevant 
internal controls by:  

o enquiring from management as to 
whether any significant changes 
have been made to the internal 
control system; 

o reading through their process 
manuals; 

o and evaluated the design, 
implementation and operating 
effectiveness through inspection of 
a sample of new connection 
application forms for the 
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The Corporation uses a provision matrix to 
determine the ECL on Trade receivables. The 
assumptions and judgements applied includes: 
● the determination of the probability of default 

(PD); and 
● the determination of Loss Given Default (LGD). 
 
We considered the determination of ECL to be a 
matter of most significance to the current year 
audit due to the following: 
● the assumptions and judgements applied by 

management in determining the ECL; and 
● the magnitude of the ECL and the impact on 

the financial statements.  
 
Disclosures with respect to the application of IFRS 
9 in determining ECL are: 

● Significant accounting policies - Financial 
Instruments: IFRS 9 

● Critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions: Impairment loss on trade 
receivables;  

● Note 11 “Trade and other receivables”; and 
● Note 26 “Financial risk management”. 

 

Corporation’s relevant internal 
controls relating to customer 
registration and creation; 

 
● We assessed the application of the 

accounting policies used and 
management’s ECL impairment model 
against the requirements of IFRS 9 and 
noted no material inconsistencies; 
 

● We agreed the amount of the ECL as per 
the output of management’s ECL 
impairment model to the provision for 
impairment as per the general ledger. No 
material differences were noted; 
 

● We reconciled the receivable balances used 
in the model to the relevant accounting 
records, as well as reviewed the segments 
of receivables as per the receivable name 
for appropriate segmentation. No material 
differences were noted; 
 

● Utilising our actuarial, risk and quants 
expertise, the following procedures were 
performed in order to assess the 
reasonability of the ECL and to analyse the 
COVID 19 impact as determined by 
management as at 31 March 2021: 

 
o Independently calculated the ECL 

by using the simplified approach 
method and compared the result 
to management's ECL calculated 
by their model. No material 
differences were noted; 
 

o For trade receivables related to 
business and domestic groups, PD 
and LGD assumptions made in 
management’s calculations were 
stressed to arrive at an 
impairment range. We noted that 
the Corporation’s calculated ECL 
was within a reasonable range of 
our independent expected range of 
ECL calculated;  

 
o For Government trade receivables, 

a benchmark probability of default 
(“PD”) and Loss Given Default 
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(“LGD”) was used to 
independently assess the 
impairment to be held for the 
government segment. Given the 
short-term nature of the trade 
receivables, a 12 month PD was 
used. A range of benchmarked 
LGDs was used to calculate a 
possible range for the impairment. 
We noted that the Corporation’s 
ECL provisions were within a 
reasonable range of our 
independent expectations; 

 
o Independently assessed the 

COVID 19 impact on the ECL by 
building an independent model 
using historic benchmark data and 
determining a link between Gross 
Domestic Product (GDP) and the 
relative increase in the loss rates 
for various base loss rates. In this 
regard, we used a forecasted GDP 
figure for Botswana to infer an 
increase in counterparty risk 
arising due to COVID 19. We noted 
that the Corporation’s ECL 
provisions were within a 
reasonable range of our 
independent expectations. 

 

Other information 
The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the document titled “Water Utilities Corporation Financial Statements 31 
March 2021”, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, and the other sections of the 
document titled “Water Utilities Corporation 2020/21 Annual Report”, which is expected to be made 
available to us after that date. The other information does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will 
not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements 
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as 
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Corporation’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the 
Corporation or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.  
 

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
● Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 

● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control.  

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.  

● Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to 
cease to continue as a going concern.  

● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 
we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions 
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.  

 
From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a 
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.  
   

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 
In accordance with Section 25(3) of the Water Utilities Corporation Act (Chapter 74:01) (the “Act”), we 
report that: 

• We have received all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, were necessary for the performance of our duties as auditors; 

• The accounts and related records of the Corporation have been properly kept; 

• The Corporation has complied with all the financial provisions of the Act with which it is the 
duty of the Corporation to comply except for: 

i. the submission of the auditors' report and the audited accounts within six months 
after the end of its financial year as provided for in section 26(1); 

ii. Section 19 of the Water Utilities Corporation Act which requires the Corporation to 
conduct its affairs on sound commercial lines and to produce a net operating income 
by which a reasonable return can be measured. As the Corporation has made a loss, 
the Corporation has failed to comply with this section of the Act; and 

• The financial statements prepared by the Corporation were prepared on a basis consistent 
with that of the preceding year, except as explained in the Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies (Standards and Interpretations effective in the current year). 

 
 
 
 
Individual Practicing Member: Sheyan Edirisinghe   Gaborone 
Registration Number: 20030048      29 October 2021 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020
(Restated)*

P'000 P'000

Revenue from contracts with customers 1 1,811,031 1,825,430

Other income 2 30,300 23,976

Operating expenses

Water treatment and distribution expenses 4,24 (1,185,000) (1,209,723)

Administration and other expenses 4,24 (607,572) (446,279)

Net Depreciation and amortisation 7, 8, 9, 16 (278,586) (232,579)

Net impairment loss on trade receivables 11 (236,097) (61,493)

Impairment loss on development expenditure 7 - (38,213)

Total operating expenses (2,307,255) (1,988,287)

Operating loss before tariff subsidies and grants (465,924) (138,881)

Revenue grant 16 167,290 147,420

Operating (loss)/profit after tariff subsidies and grants (298,634) 8,539

Finance income 5 81,321 89,438

Finance costs 5 (25,570) (26,672)

(Loss)/profit for the year before income tax (242,883) 71,305

Income tax 6 76,840 (21,382)

(Loss)/profit for the year (166,043) 49,923

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year (166,043) 49,923

*See note 24 for details regarding the restatement as a result of errors



WATER UTILITIES CORPORATION Page 10
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 March 2021

31 March 31 March 1 April 
2021 2020 2019

Notes (Restated)*
P'000 P'000 P'000

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 7,24 8,649,964       7,155,805     6,856,642    
Right of use assets 8 37,738            47,547          -              
Intangible assets 9 1,763              2,466            4,920          
Deferred tax asset 20 8,267              -               -              

8,697,732       7,205,818     6,861,562    

Current assets

Inventories 10 54,711            50,390          44,951         

Trade and other receivables 11 743,286          412,955        403,406       

Tax refundable 20 22,922            22,922          43,962         

Investments carried at amortised cost 13, 25 34,328            390,945        376,755       

Cash and cash equivalents 12, 25 1,534,154       1,660,412     1,426,092    

2,389,401       2,537,624     2,295,166    

Total assets 11,087,133   9,743,442   9,156,728  

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves

Irredeemable capital 14 752,738          752,738        752,738       

15 4,104,627       4,104,627     4,104,627    

Interest reserve - EIB 17 17,796            17,466          16,998         

Retained earnings 615,499 781,872 732,417
5,490,660       5,656,703     5,606,780    

Non-current liabilities
Government grants 16 4,282,380      3,185,589    2,770,033   
Borrowings 17 210,889         212,944       220,698      
Consumer deposits 18 55,146           50,436         43,570         
Lease liabilities 8 29,937           41,690         -             
Deferred tax liabilities 20,24 -                68,573         47,191         

4,578,352       3,559,232     3,081,492    

Current liabilities
Borrowings 17 11,363            13,442          13,442         
Lease Liabilities 8 13,079            9,277            -              
Trade and other payables 19 993,679          504,788        455,014       

1,018,121       527,507        468,456       

Total liabilities 5,596,473       4,086,739     3,549,948    

Total equity and liabilities 11,087,133   9,743,442   9,156,728  

Government contribution - 
Water sector reforms

*See note 24 for details regarding the restatement as a result of errors and note 25 for details regarding the 
reclassification of cash and cash equivalents
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Irredeemable 
Capital 

Government 
Contribution

Interest 
Subsidy 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings Total

P'000 P'000 P'000 P'000 P'000

Balance at 31 March 2019 752,738        4,104,627     16,998  732,417  5,606,780  
-                 -                 -         75,598 75,598       

Transfers within components of equity -                 -                 468        (468) -             

752,738        4,104,627     17,466  807,547  5,682,378  

Correction of error (net of tax) (note 24) -                 -                 -         (25,675) (25,675)      

752,738        4,104,627     17,466  781,872  5,656,703  

Balance at 1 April 2020 (restated)* 752,738 4,104,627 17,466 781,872 5,656,703

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (166,043) (166,043)    

Transfers within components of equity - - 330 (330) -             

Balance at 31 March 2021 752,738 4,104,627 17,796 615,499 5,490,660  

*See note 24 for details regarding the restatement as a result of errors

Total comprehensive income for the year before restatement

Restated equity balances at 31 March 2020

Balance at 31 March 2020 (as originally presented)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Notes 2021 2020
P'000 P'000

(Restated)*
Cash flows from/(to) operating activities 21 (28,526)       164,382     

Cash generated from/(used in) investing activities
Development expenditure incurred 7,24 (1,694,196)    (542,885)      
Proceeds on sale of property, plant and equipment 2, 7 797               6,610            

7 (155,079)       (60,109)        
Interest received 5 81,321           89,438          
Net disposals/(purchases) of investments at amortised cost 13, 25 356,617         (14,190)        

Net cash used in investing activities (1,410,540)  (521,136)    

Cash generated from/(used in) financing activities

Interest paid 5 (22,273)         (22,901)        

Repayment of long-term borrowings 17 (4,134)           (7,754)          

16 1,351,903      632,291        

8 (12,688)         (10,562)        

Net cash from financing activities 1,312,808   591,074     

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (126,258)       234,320       

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 1,660,412     1,426,092    
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 1,534,154   1,660,412  

Reconciled to: 

Cash and cash equivalents recognised as current assets 1,534,154   1,660,412

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 

Cash and capital grants received from Government 

Payments towards lease liabilities

*See note 24  for details regarding the restatement as a result of errors and note 25 for details regarding the 
reclassification of cash and cash equivalents
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION 

Standard/Interpretation

Confirmed 
or Proposed 

Effective 
date: Years 
beginning 
on or after

> Amendment to IAS 1, 
‘Presentation of financial 
statements’ 

1 Jan 2020

> Amendment to IAS 8, 
‘Accounting policies, changes in 
accounting estimates and errors’ 
on the definition of material.

1 Jan 2020

> Definition of a Business – 
Amendments to IFRS 3

1 Jan 2020

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Corporation

for the year ended 31 March 2021

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous year except where otherwise stated. The financial
statements are presented and rounded to the nearest one thousand Pula which is the functional currency. These
financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Members of the Board on 29 October 2021

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the requirements of the Water Utilities Corporation Act (CAP 74:02). The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and are presented in precision of thousands
of Pula (P'000'). Historical cost is generally the fair value of the asset or liability at the date of initial recognition.
The financial statements are prepared under the assumption that the Corporation is a going concern.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(''IFRS'') issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (''IASB'), interpretations issued by the
International Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations Committee and in the manner required by the Water
Utilities Corporation Act (Chapter 74:02).

Changes in accounting policies

The Corporation has not adopted new standards or amendments to existing standards in the current reporting
date. The comparative prior year financial statements include the adoption of IFRS 16 Leases, to which, the policy
statements are included under significant accounting policies applicable for the comparative financial statements.
The table below is summary of standards and amendments that are effective for the current reporting period but
have been assessed to have no impact on the Corporation's financial statements.

Summary of changes and Management's Rationale for 
Impact

The IASB clarified the definition of materiality and additional
guidance in regard to obstructive disclosures that could divert the
users' attention on material information contained in the financial
statements. Management has always considered materiality as
fundamental to the preparation and presentation of financial
statements with no excessive and repetitive disclosures that
could potentially obstruct users from identifying key information
for economic decision making based on the financial statements.

The IASB issued guidance on definition of a business as a
fundamental factor to determine accounting for transactions that
entail acquisition of a group of assets that can be deemed to be
constitute a business. The clarification relates to inputs,
processes and outputs. The Corporation has not undertaken
acquisitions of businesses or group of assets that can be deemed
to require special considerations in the judgment to classify as a
business combination or an asset acquisition.

The Corporation has been established under the Water Utilities Corporation Act (CAP 74:02). The Corporation is
registered and domiciled in Botswana with the primary objective to provide potable water supply and wastewater
services throughout Botswana. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except
where otherwise stated and incorporate the principal accounting policies set out below. 



WATER UTILITIES CORPORATION Page 14
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2021

Standard/Interpretation

Confirmed or 
Proposed 

Effective date: 
Years beginning 

on or after
> Interest Rate Benchmark 
Reform – Amendments to IFRS 
7, IFRS 9 and IAS 39

1 Jan 2020

> Revised Conceptual 
Framework for Financial 
Reporting

1 Jan 2020

(b) Standards issued but not effective

Standard/ Interpretation

Confirmed or 
Proposed 
Effective date: 
Years beginning 
on or after

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 Jan 2023

Covid-19-related Rent 
Concessions – Amendments to 
IFRS 16

1 Jan 2020

Summary of changes and Management's 
Rationale for Impact

The IASB guidance on the standard requires a current
measurement model where estimates are re-measured
in each reporting period. Corporation is not an
insurance entity nor engages in activities similar to
insurance contracts other than taking cover for its
assets.

The IASB has provided guidance on accounting for
rental concessions in regard to the valuation of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets where such
concessions can be payment holidays and deferral of
lease payments. The Corporation has not benefited
from or awarded sub lease Rent Concessions in the
form of payment holidays or rental deferrals during the
Covid 19 era. Consequently no adjustments to its lease
accounting under IFRS 16.

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Corporation (continued)

Summary of changes and Management's 
Rationale for Impact

The IASB has issued extensive guidance on accounting
for hedging activities undertaken as part of risk
management strategies. The Corporation does not
undertake hedging activities as part of its risk
management strategies.

The IASB has issued a revised conceptual framework
that provided definitions for income, expenses, assets,
liabilities and equity. The revised definitions may
require entities that make reference to the conceptual
framework when determining the recognition and
measurement of elements of financial statements
where there is no specific IFRS applicable to their
circumstances. The Corporation's assets, liabilities,
income, expenses and equity reserves are clearly
guided by existing IFRS and therefore, there are no
policies and basis of measurements made directly by
reference to the Conceptual Framework. The new
definitions of the elements of financial statements in
the Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting is consistent with the applicable specific
standards. 

As at 31 May 2020, the following standards and interpretations had been issued but were not mandatory for
the current reporting period. Management will continue to assess the impact of these standards for
forthcoming periods and the table below indicates the preliminary impact assessments and rationale.
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(b) Standards issued but not effective (continued)

Standard/ Interpretation Confirmed or 
Proposed 
Effective date: 
Years beginning 
on or after

Classification of Liabilities as 
Current or Non-current – 
Amendments to IAS 1

1 Jan 2023

> Property, Plant and 
Equipment: Proceeds before 
intended use – Amendments 
to IAS 16

1 Jan 2022

Reference to the Conceptual 
Framework – Amendments 
to IFRS 3

1 Jan 2022

Annual Improvements to 
IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020

1 Jan 2022

Onerous Contracts – Cost of 
Fulfilling a Contract 
Amendments to IAS 37

1 Jan 2022

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Standards require that conceptual framework for financial
reporting add an exception for recognition of liabilities and
contingent liabilities and that contingent assets should not be
recognised at the acquisition date. No Business combination
activities are currently undertaken by the Corporation nor within
the strategic scope for the forthcoming reporting periods.

Improvements relating to IFRS 9 - clarifies fees to be included in
the 10% test for derecognition of financial liabilities, IFRS 16 -
remove illustration of payments from lessor relating to leasehold
improvements and IAS 41 - removal of requirement for entities
to exclude cashflows for taxation when measuring fair value.
These improvements are not applicable to the Corporation.

The amendment to the Standard provides that direct costs of
fulfilling a contract include both the incremental costs directly
related to fulfilling contracts. The Corporation may suffer
potential losses due to contractual commitments to supply
potable and wastewater to customers in exchange for a lower or
no consideration due Government instruction to continue to
supply of the services/product as measures for economic
recovery from the Covid -19 pandemic. 

Summary of changes and Management's Rationale for 
Impact

The IASB provided guidance in regard to judgments for
classification of financial liabilities as current or non-current when
there are covenants that have been breached or there are
indicators of potential breaches. The guidance extends to entities
that have provided guarantees to related entities. The
Corporation has fulfilled debt covenants in the past and continues
to monitor and reflect on the potential impact of deviations from
the debt covenants. Outstanding debt is expected to be settled in
the short term, consequently, the extent of judgment in
classification as current or non-current is reduced.

The IASB has issued guidance in regard to accounting for
proceeds generated from assets at testing stage or prior to being
ready for intended use. The guidance entails that such proceeds
must not be adjusted against the carrying amount of the asset
but recognised in profit or loss. The Corporation does not bill or
recover fees for from customers for testing potable or wastewater
infrastructure assets. 



WATER UTILITIES CORPORATION Page 16
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition

Potable water and wastewater services

The core principles of IFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” requires an entity to recognise revenue
when, or as, the performance obligations with regards to the supply of good or services under a customer contract
have been satisfied through the transfer of such promised goods or services to the customer and it is probable that
the Corporation will collect the consideration that it is entitled to. Such transfer occurs when the customer obtains
control over the said goods or services. 

Control is transferred as when the customer consumes the potable water and receives wastewater services.
Revenue is measured at an amount that reflects the consideration that the Corporation expects to be entitled to in
exchange for transferring those goods or services to the customer. The consideration expected by the Corporation is
based on the volume of potable water consumed by the customer or the wastewater services received and the
approved tariff rates applicable. 

Consideration received in advance of recognising the associated revenue from the customer is recorded within
contract liabilities (deferred income). 

In determining whether it is probable that the Corporation will collect the consideration to which it is entitled to, an
assessment is made as to the customer’s ability and its intention to pay. Where the ability and/or the intention of
the customer to pay the consideration is determined to be low (i.e. low probability of collection), no revenue is
recognised when the water is consumed or when wastewater services are received by such customers. Instead,
when the probability of collection is low, revenue is recognised as and when cash is received by the customer.

Because it is not practicable to obtain actual meter readings for all customers at the end of each reporting cycle,
the Corporation may estimate the water consumed by its customers.  The estimates are mainly based on recent and 
historical consumption. These estimates are provisionally recognised as revenue for the period to which the
consumption is deemed to have been enjoyed by the customers. These estimates are continuously monitored
against actual periodic meter readings obtained or appeals made by customers and are updated continuously.

The following services are recorded within “Revenue” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income since they relate
to the Corporation’s obligation as a water and wastewater services provider.

The Corporation has an ongoing obligation to provide potable water and wastewater services to customers which
are segmented as domestic, commercial and Government and councils categories. The Corporation is obligated to
provide a continuous supply of services across the entire network, and so customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits in line with the Corporation's performance obligation.

The Corporation recognises revenue for potable water and wastewater services at an amount to which it expects to
be entitled to, since this amount is considered by management to correspond directly with the value of its
performance obligations satisfied to date, being the delivery and consumption of potable water.

The amount of consideration which the Corporation expects to be entitled to is determined by actual usage, derived
from meter readings, where such readings are available. Where no actual meter readings are available (due to
practical reasons such as the Corporation not gaining access to customer premises to allow for meter readings,
management then estimates the potable water and wastewater bill by reference to recent consumption in line with
actual historical meter readings. Instances of estimations are common for domestic customers such that actual
revenue may vary from the estimate. 

Revenue also includes an estimate of the amount of mains potable water and wastewater charges unbilled to
metered customers at the period end, which are recorded within trade receivables.

During the year, the Government issued a directive to reconnect previously disconnected meters of customers in
default. These customers did not meet the probability of collecting the consideration threshold set by the
Corporation and therefore, revenue from these customers have been recognised when cash is received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Connection fees

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition 

Initial and Subsequent Measurement

Useful Life
Leasehold land, dams and buildings 25 - 99 years
Distribution systems, plant and machinery 5 - 40 years
Vehicles and equipment 5 - 15 years

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Land and assets under construction are not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives to their estimated residual value. Major repairs are depreciated
over the remaining useful life of the related asset or to the date of the next major repair, whichever is shorter. The
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets to their residual values over their useful lives, using
the straight-line method. Depreciation commences when the asset is available for its intended use, which could be
an earlier date than when the asset is actually put into economic use by management. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. Indicators of impairment are evaluated at each reporting
date and where an asset or group of assets' carrying amounts are determined to be higher than the recoverable
amounts, an impairment is charged to profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less cost
to sell and value in use. Fair value less cost to sale is determined by reference to observable market data to which
market participants will undertake in the exit of the asset by the Corporation. Value in use reflects the present
value of future cash flows that will be generated by the Corporation from continued use of the asset or group of
assets in its current condition over the remaining life.

A connection fee includes the provision of a connection service to an existing water main or sewer, laying a pipe to
the boundary of a customer’s property and connecting to their supply pipe. Management consider that the
combination of these activities comprises of a distinct performance obligation to the customer. Service connection
income is recognised in revenue at the point in time that the connection is completed.

Property, plant and equipment comprises mainly land, dams and buildings, distribution systems, plant and
machinery, vehicles and equipment. These are items that are tangible and held for use in the supply of goods and
services and expected to be used for more than one year. Where major components of an item of property, plant or
equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items of property, plant or equipment and
depreciated separately over their respective useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Assets in physical form that are under the control of the Corporation through non-short term leases and
within the scope of IFRS 16 are recognised separately as Right of Use Assets and not subsumed to PPE balances.

Spare parts, standby and servicing equipment held by the Corporation, that meets the definition of property, plant
and equipment are classified as such. Spare parts and standby equipment considered to be critical spares and can
only be used in connection with a specific item of property, plant and equipment are also accounted for as property,
plant and equipment. All other spare parts are accounted for as inventory.

Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at cost. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the
property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are
met and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Property, plant and equipment are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent expenditure on property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when the expenditure enhances the
value or output of the asset beyond original expectations and it can be measured reliably. Costs incurred on
repairing and maintaining assets are recognised in the statement of financial performance in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Development Expenditure

Derecognition

Intangible assets

Leases under IFRS 16

The Corporation assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease, at the date of transition to IFRS 16, inception
of contract after transition date and date of legal or deemed renewal of contract, whichever is applicable . A
contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

In order to assess whether a contract is, or contains a lease, management determine whether the asset under
consideration is identified, which means that the asset is either explicitly or implicitly specified in the contract and
that the supplier does not have a substantial right of substitution throughout the period of use. Once management
has concluded that the contract deals with an identified asset, the right to control the use thereof is considered. To
this end, control over the use of an identified asset only exists when the corporation has the right to substantially
all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset as well as the right to direct the use of the asset.

Costs that are directly associated with the purchase of identifiable software products controlled by the Corporation,
that will probably generate economic benefits beyond one year that can be measured reliably, are recognised as
intangible assets. Costs associated with maintaining computer software programs are recognised as an expense as
incurred.  

Intangible assets are capitalised at cost when it’s probable that the expected future economic benefits attributable
will flow to the Corporation and the costs can be reliably measured. These costs are amortised over their estimated
useful lives (five years), effectively, the computer software costs are measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment charges. Intangible assets, comprising of computer software, are assessed for
impairment as and when there are indicators of such.

An item of intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangible asset and are recognised in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognised.

The Property, Plant and Equipment balances include Development Expenditure, which constitutes of self-
constructed assets and assets transferred to the Corporation by the Government of Botswana through Water Sector
Reform initiatives for production and supply purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. The
cost includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs for qualifying assets and professional fees, the
initial estimate, where relevant, of costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they
are located and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. Such costs are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. 

Depreciation of Development Expenditure assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use and
charged on a similar basis as prescribed for completed assets above. Management performs an annual assessment
of long overdue development projects, including an evaluation of whether such projects are impaired. Any impaired
development expenditure is written off to the statement of comprehensive income.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases under IFRS 16 (continued)

Right-of-use assets

For right-of-use assets which are depreciated over their useful lives, the useful lives are determined consistently
with items of the same class of property, plant and equipment. Right of use assets are annually assessed for
impairment indicators, including whether the underlying lease contracts or arrangements have become onerous.
Potential impairments are evaluated in a manner consistent with accounting for impairments as detailed under
the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment. Onerous contracts over Right of use assets result in a
provision being created at the lower of the amounts payable to exit the contract and the present value of the
unavoidable net cash outflows from continued use of the asset.

 ● less any lease incentives received. 

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life (2-5 years) of the
underlying asset on a straight line basis. However, if a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the
cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the corporation expects to exercise a purchase option, the related
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. The depreciation charge is included
in the statement of comprehensive income unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
Depreciation starts at the commencement date of a lease.

 ● the initial amount of the corresponding lease liability as outlined under the lease liability section below; 
 ● any lease payments made at or before the commencement date; 
 ● any initial direct costs incurred; 
● any estimated costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the

site on which it is located, when the corporation incurs an obligation to do so, unless these costs are incurred to
produce inventories; and

In circumstances where the determination of whether the contract is or contains a lease requires significant
judgement, the relevant disclosures are provided in the significant judgments and sources of estimation
uncertainty section of these accounting policies.

A lease liability and corresponding right-of-use asset are recognised at the lease commencement date, for all
lease agreements for which the Corporation is a lessee, except for short-term leases of 12 months or less, or
leases of low value assets. Where the total value of undiscounted rentals paid during the life of any single lease
is P50,000 or less, such leases are considered to be leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Corporation
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense (note 8) on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

The various lease and non-lease components of contracts containing leases are accounted for separately, with
consideration being allocated to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of the lease
components and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components (where non-lease components
exist).

However as an exception to the preceding paragraph, the Corporation has elected not to separate the non-lease
components for leases of land and buildings. Details of leasing arrangements where the Corporation is a lessee
are presented in note 8 Leases (Corporation as lessee).

Right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position. Lease payments
included in the measurement of the Right-of-use asset comprise the following:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leases under IFRS 16 (continued)

Right-of-use assets

● a lease contract has been modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in which
case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised payments using a revised discount rate.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset, or is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability (or
right-of-use asset). The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period incurred and are included in
operating expenses.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line item on the Statement of Financial Position. The lease liability is
subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect lease payments made. Interest charged on
the lease liability is included in finance costs (note 5). The company remeasures the lease liability (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use asset) when:

● there has been a change to the lease term, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate;
● there has been a change in the assessment of whether the Corporation will exercise a purchase, termination or
extension option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate;
● there has been a change in expected payment under a residual value guarantee, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate;

The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting year.
If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for prospectively as a change in
accounting estimate.

Each part of a right-of-use asset with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the asset is depreciated
separately.

Right-of-use assets are derecognised when the contract is terminated, expires or the Corporation ceases to be party
of the arrangement that qualifies as a lease under IFRS 16 as outlined above. Gains or losses arising on
derecognition of the Right-of-use asset are recognised in profit or loss. 

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined,
the corporation uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease liability

● lease payments in an optional renewal period if the corporation is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option; and
● penalties for early termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to terminate the
lease.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
● fixed lease payments, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives;

● variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

● the amount expected to be payable by the corporation under residual value guarantees;

● the exercise price of purchase options, if the corporation is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are measured subsequently at amortised cost.

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows
and to sell the financial assets, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at amortised cost. All other financial
assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Trade receivables, and other receivables are classified as Financial Assets at Amortised Cost. They are initially
measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
Expected Credit Losses (ECLs). Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period. Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than
those financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

Inventories comprise maintenance spares and stores, water treatment chemicals and consumables. Maintenance
spares and consumable stores are expensed to the statement of comprehensive income as they are utilised unless
they satisfy the recognition criteria as critical spares, which are capitalised as property, plant and equipment.                                                                                                                                                                                       
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost, determined on a weighted average cost basis and net realisable
value. The weighted average cost includes costs attributable to purchase price including non-refundable taxes,
transportation and duties required to avail the inventory to usable and saleable condition. The net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the cost of completion and variable selling
expenses. Write-downs to net realisable value and inventory losses are expensed within cost of sales in the
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which the write-downs or losses occur.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: IFRS 9

Financial Assets

Financial instruments held by the Corporation are classified in accordance with provisions of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset
is under a contract whose term require delivery of the financial asset within the time frame established by the
market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as at
FVTPL are recognised immediately.

Effective interest method

Inventory

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the corporation’ statement of financial position when the 
corporation becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

The financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities ( other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the 
financial asset or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to 
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the statement of 
comprehensive income.
or loss.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's 
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial 
assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost
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The corporation recognises an impairment gain or loss in the statement of comprehensive income for all financial 
instruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 

Derecognition of financial assets

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Corporation derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire; or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Corporation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Corporation recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Corporation retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Corporation continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

The Corporation uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by Invoice aged category  within the risk classifications as Domestic, Business and Government Customers). 

The provision matrix is initially based on the Corporation’s historical observed default rates. The Corporation will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information that has
observable correlations with default patterns. Foward looking information includes the projected Gross Domestic
Product (GDP) and other macro-economic factors.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The corporation’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of customer’s actual default in the future.

Write off policy

The corporation considers that the ECL as determined by PDs are estimates and may differ from actual loss 
patterns. Annual assessment of the sufficiency of the ECL is performed and any changes are accounted in the 
statement of comprehensive income. The corporation writes off trade receivables when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the 
failure to make contractual payments beyond 90 days , corporate closures and no successful efforts towards tracing 
the customer for enforcement of collection. Write-offs are approved by Management and authorised by members of 
the board.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified
in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in short term. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current if expected to
be settled within 12 months, otherwise they are classified as non-current. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the statement of
comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Corporation has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Gains and losses arising from the changes in the fair value of the FVTPL are presented in the
income statement in the period in which they arise.

WATER UTILITIES CORPORATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2021

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables 

Financial Instruments (Continued)

At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Corporation

Classification as debt or equity

Equity instruments

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Offsetting of financial instruments

Cash and cash equivalents

Government grants 

Irredeemable capital 

Grants are recognised when there is reasonable expectation that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. The Corporation may receive grants relating to capital projects in form of cash or
physical assets and towards income expenditure. Grant income related to capital projects or in physical assets is
initially recognised as deferred income in the statement of financial position with a corresponding asset recognised
in property, plant and equipment or development expenditure, whichever is relevant. Subsequently, the deferred
income is amortised to the statement of comprehensive income in a manner consistent with depreciation of the
related asset. Grant income related to expenditure is initially recognised as deferred income in the statement of
financial position and subsequently amortised to the statement of comprehensive income when the intended
expenditure is incurred by the Corporation.

Irredeemable capital comprises contributions received from the Government in respect of its obligations as the 
owner of the Corporation in terms of the Water Utilities Corporation Act (74:02).

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 
substance of the contractual arrangement.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Corporation are recorded at the fair value received, net of direct
issue costs. In the Corporation's case, there is no equity issued, however the Government of Botswana, which is
the owner through the Water Utilities Corporation Act of 1970 - (Laws of Botswana Chapter 74:02) has a residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost, including trade payables and borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs. Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest
method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

The Corporation derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Corporation’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Corporation considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalent. These largely includes fixed deposits with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity dates that the Corporation has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as
investment at amortised cost. These investments are recorded at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment, with revenue recognised on an effective yield basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial 
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.



WATER UTILITIES CORPORATION Page 24
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
for the year ended 31 March 2021

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

Taxation

Current tax

Deferred tax

Segment reporting

The Corporation's Chief Executive Officer has been identified as the chief operating decision maker (CODM), who
is responsible for assessing the performance and allocation of resources of the Corporation. The Corporation
reports a single segment – Water Utilities Corporation performance within the Botswana economic environment.
The business is widely distributed with no reliance on any major clients. In addition, no client accounts for more
than 10% of revenue. The CODM regularly review the operating results of the Corporation for which discrete
financial information is made available on a quarterly basis and against which performance is measured and
resources are assigned to the single segment. 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items that are non-taxable and non- deductible. The
Corporation's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by reporting period end.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the statement of financial position liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Corporation expects, at the reporting date, to
recover or settle the carrying amounts of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Corporation intends to settle its current assets and current liabilities on a net basis.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax  payable and the movement in deferred tax.

Provisions are recognised when the Corporation has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the Corporation will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

At each reporting date, the Corporation reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Corporation estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash
generating unit's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or
Corporation's assets. Forecast cash flows, expected life, growth patterns beyond the 5 year planning horizon and the
cost of capital used for discounting future cash flows are assessed through sensitivity analysis and scenarios to
reduce the risk of estimation errors.

Changes in accounting policies, prior period errors and changes in accounting estimates

b) Impairment losses for non - financial assets (property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and 
right-of -use assets)

a)  Determination of useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

Changes in accounting policies are adopted either due to new IFRS or amendments of existing standards or
voluntarily. Voluntary changes in accounting policies relate to instances when management consider that a change in
accounting policy will better inform the users of the financial statements in regard to new circumstances and the
underlying impact of such changes on the relevance and reliability of the financial statements. Where the change in
accounting policy is triggered by new IFRS or amendments of existing standards, the Corporation adopts transitional
guidance issued by IFRS. The Corporation applies retrospective accounting by adjusting comparative financial
statements to the extent applicable and practicable when the changes in accounting policies are voluntary. Prior
period errors that are identified during the reporting period relate to deviations from IFRS, omissions or
misstatements in financial information reported in prior periods. Prior period errors are retrospectively adjusted on
comparative periods to which the error occurred. The cumulative net effect, including tax consequences of changes
in accounting policies and prior period errors that impact financial reporting periods earlier than the recent
comparatives are adjusted on opening retained earnings for the earliest comparative financial statements with
corresponding adjustments to the respective assets, liabilities or other components of equity. Changes in accounting
estimates are prospectively accounted on the financial statements during the year of the change in estimate and
subsequent reporting periods.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Corporation’s
accounting policies. These areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the Corporation’s financial statements are disclosed.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The following are what
management considers to be critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

On an annual basis, the Corporation obtains technical assistance from user functions, for example, Engineers to
assess if the useful lives and residual value estimates are appropriate and consistent with theoretical lives and
residual values per the financial records. Changes in useful lives and residual values are adjusted in profit or loss
prospectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

c) Impairment loss on trade receivables

e) Revenue

f) Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. An assessment is made at each reporting date to 
determine if these can still be utilized and where they are not recoverable they will be written off to the 
statement of comprehensive income.

The Corporation also applies judgement in determination of the lease term by considering all facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise the option to renew or exercise the option to
terminate and whether it is reasonably likely that the option will be exercised. The factors considered include
past history of terminating leases and strategic plans in regard to asset acquisitions. Extension options are
included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended.

The Corporation uses provision matrix as a determination of expected credit  losses on Trade receivables.                                                                                
Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") has been assessed by grouping customers with shared credit risk characteristics
and days past due. The assumptions and judgements applied includes the determination of probability of default
(PD) using historical default rates and the determination of Loss Given Default(LGD). The determination of PD is
considered a critical accounting estimate because the assessment of the correlation between historical observed
default rates and forecast economic conditions is judgmental and based on future events that can change. The
determination of LGD is based on historical credit loss experience which may not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. Expected loss rates are determined based on historical losses adjusted
to reflect current and forward looking macroeconomic factors, where relevant, affecting the customer’s ability to
settle the outstanding amount. 

The Corporation applies judgement in determination of the interest rate implicit in the lease liability and right of
use asset measurement. The IBR is used as a proxy interest rate implicit in the lease and this rate reflects the
Corporation's cost of borrowing for financing similar assets in the market. There are instances when no
observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
leases. The adjustments may take into account the nature of the asset, its location, the lease contract tenure
and size of lease rentals. Practical expedients are applied where necessary and a similar IBR is used for assets
within the same category, such as buildings or equipment.

Revenue from customers is recognised on the actual meter readings where the Corporation has managed to get 
access to client premises to get the readings. Where meter readings are not available revenue is estimated 
based on the average of the 3 months' previous consumption and adjustment of the revenue done when the 
actual meter readings are inconsistent with the estimate previously done.   

d) Estimation of Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR) and lease term used on measurement of lease 
liabilities and right of use assets
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2021 2020
P'000 P'000

1 Revenue from contracts with customers
Potable water 1,632,589      1,634,631        
Wastewater 143,678         146,995          
Connection fees 34,764           43,804            

1,811,031    1,825,430      

Disaggregation of revenue

2021

Revenue
Service transferred overtime

Total

Potable water 1,632,589                               1,632,589       
Wastewater 143,678                                  143,678          
Connection fees -                                         34,764            

2020

Revenue
Service transferred overtime

Total

Potable water 1,634,631                               1,634,631       
Wastewater 146,995                                  146,995          
Connection fees -                                        43,804            

2 Other Income
2021 2020

P'000 P'000
Foreign exchange gain 2,253             2,662              
Water bowsing 3,020             2,097              
Sewage cleaning 15,975           10,308            
Vacuum tanker services 4,724             4,036              
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 470               4,873              
Sundry income 3,858            -                 

30,300         23,976           

WATER UTILITIES CORPORATION

for the year ended 31 March 2021
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The corporation derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in time in
the following major product and service lines. In the following table, revenue is disaggregated by major
products / service lines and timing of revenue recognition. 

Service 
transferred at 
point in time

                      -   
                      -   

                34,764 

Service 
transferred at 
point in time

                      -   
                      -   

                43,804 

The Government declared a State of Public Emergency and issued a directive in April 2020 for the
Corporation to reconnect defaulting customers. The Corporation could not recognise the related revenue
since the probability of collection was low given the background of defaulting. In line with IFRS 15, the
Corporation reassessed contracts with the customers because of the change in these circumstances as it
didn't meet the criteria for revenue recognition. Such revenue from these customers was recognised on a
cash basis. Water consumed during the year by defaulting customers for whom reconnections were made in
accordance with the Government directive, for which no revenue has been recognised amounted to P32.5m.
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2021 2020
P'000 P'000

3 Operating Profit/(loss) before Tariff subsidy
The operating profit/(loss) before tariff subsidy includes the following items:

Depreciation of Property,Plant and equipment (note 7) 352,636 297,912
Depreciation - Right of use (note 8) 11,249 10,210
Amortisation of grants (note 16) (255,445) (77,997)
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 9 ) 2,856 2,454

236,097 61,493
Board Member's fees (note 23) 233             538
Operating Lease Rentals & rates - property 1,466 1,277
Remuneration - Executive Management (note 23) 17,290 11,035
Foreign Exchange gain  (note 2) 2,253 2,662

4 Expenses by nature
2021 2020

(Restated)*
P'000 P'000

Expenses to be apportioned
Total salaries and wages expenses 898,476       906,181       
Spares and consumables 143,830       157,040       

Basis of apportionment

Water treatment and distribution expenses

Building maintenance 343             1,554           
Pumping power, repairs and chemicals 350,812       357,592       
Apportioned: Direct salaries and wages 718,781       724,945       
Apportioned: Spare and consumables 115,064       125,632       

Total Water treatment and distribution expenses 1,185,000  1,209,723  

Administration and other expenses

Security 74,065         64,288         
Travelling 20,907         30,037         
Professional and Consultancy 32,136         59,720         
Legal fees 3,860          2,055           
Settlement fees 112,000       -              
Auditor's remuneration 2,500 1,641
IT Expenses 41,894         41,885         
Telephone, postage, printing and Stationery 25,849         20,047         
Repairs and maintenance 9,098          4,648           
Staff expenses 13,392         11,659         
Public Relations & Advertising 6,116          6,226           
Insurance 12,618         13,815         
Bank Charges 6,125          7,383           
Office Rental, Electricity and water 8,664          10,085         
Foreign exchange loss 2,586          -              
State of emergency reconnections 27,301         -              
Apportioned: Direct salaries and wages 179,695       141,382       
Apportioned: Spare and consumables 28,766         31,408         

607,572     446,279      

Increase/(decrease) in accounts receivable impairment 
provision (note 11 )

*See note 24 for details regarding restatement as a result of errors

Apportionment is on an 80:20 basis between water treatment and distribution expenses and administration
and other expenses respectively. Apportionment is based on allocation of resources between the expenses.
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P'000 P'000
5 Finance income/costs

Finance income
Interest on deposits and short term investments 81,321 89,438

Finance costs
- European Investment Bank Loan 484             1,171          
- Domestic Medium Term Note Bond (DMTN) 21,789        21,730        
- Unwinding of interest - IFRS 16 3,297          3,771          

25,570 26,672

6 Taxation 2021 2020
(Restated)*

P'000 P'000
Current tax:
Basic tax at 22 % (2020: 22%) -              -              

Over statement of prior year tax (note 20) (5,126) -              

Current year estimate (note 20) (71,714) 21,382         

Income tax expense (76,840) 21,382        

Profit before income tax (242,883) 71,305        
Tax calculated at applicable tax rates of 22% (2020: 22%) (53,434) 15,687        
Tax effects of:

  - Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,127 10,149
  - Income not subject to income tax (19,407) (4,454)

(5,126) -
Income tax expense (76,840) 21,382

Effective tax rate 32% 30%

*See note 24 for details regarding restatement as a result of errors

 - Prior year overstatement

The tax on the Corporation's profit before tax differs from theoretical amount that would arise using the basic 
tax rate as follows:
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7 Property, plant and equipment 

COST P'000 P'000 P'000 P'000 P'000

Balance at 31 March 2019 2,924,814   657,604        5,331,628      546,433      9,460,479      
Additions 1,476           -                 8,778              49,855        60,109            
Additions to development expenditure -               575,802         -                  -              575,802          
Disposal -               -                 -                  (18,603)       (18,603)           
Transfer from development expenditure 484,123       (450,730)        4,893              -              38,286            
Impairment of development expenditure -               (38,213)         -                  -              (38,213)           
Re-classification of chemical consumption -               (1,168)           -                  -              (1,168)             
WIP Non Qualifying Costs transferred to IS -               (32,917)         -                  -              (32,917)           
Balance at 31 March 2020 (Restated, note 24) 3,410,413  710,378       5,345,299     577,685     10,043,775   

Additions 1,097           -                 64,693            89,289        155,079          
Additions to development expenditure -               1,694,196      -                  -              1,694,196        
Disposal -               -                 -                  (1,010)         (1,010)             
Transfer from development expenditure to PPE 69,442         (228,124)        158,682          -              -                  

Transfer from development expenditure to Intangible assets (note 9) -               (2,153)           -                  -              (2,153)             
Balance at 31 March 2021 3,480,952  2,174,297    5,568,674     665,964     11,889,887   

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION  
Balance at 31 March 2019 874,353     -                1,435,639     293,845     2,603,837     
Depreciation charge 120,497       -                 136,021          41,394        297,912          
Disposals -               -                 -                  (13,779)       (13,779)           
Balance at 31 March 2020 994,850     -                1,571,660     321,460     2,887,970     

Depreciation charge 118,939       -                 189,140          44,557        352,636          
Disposals -               -                 -                  (683)            (683)                
Balance at 31 March 2021 1,113,789  -                1,760,800     365,334     3,239,923     

Carrying amount at 31 March 2020 (restated, note 24) 2,415,563  710,378       3,773,639     256,225     7,155,805     
Carrying amount at 31 March 2021 2,367,163  2,174,297    3,807,874     300,630     8,649,964     

*See note 24 for details the regarding restatement as a result of errors

Development 
expenditure 
(Restated)*

Land, dams
 and 

buildings

Distribution 
systems, plant 
and machinery

Vehicles
 and 

equipment
Total
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7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Covid-19 impact assessment on recoverability of assets

Principal assumptions used Best Case Worst Case

Discount rate (DR) 14.13% 14.13%

Growth rate (GR) 7.50% 0.00%

Headroom/(Loss) - Impairment - P'000 4,066,834     (1,500,914)     2,384,283        

Headroom/(Loss)-Impairment (% Change -1% DR & GR) - P'000 4,497,218     (883,342)        2,759,582        

Headroom/(Loss) - Impairment (% Change +1% DR) - P'000 2,331,016     (2,033,613)     1,115,075        

Headroom/(Loss) - Impairment (% Change -1% DR) - P'000 6,427,721     (883,342)        4,011,466        

Base Case

12.13%

3.90%

The Corporation assesses the recoverability of its non- current assets as a single cash generating unit. Covid-19 has been identified as an impairment
indicator as the economic downturn has triggered decline in revenue, lower utilisation of assets and consequential operating losses. The recoverable amount
for the cash generating unit has been determined as the value in use which is deemed to be higher than the piecemeal fair value less costs to sell of the
components making up the cash generating unit. The recoverable amount was determined using multiple variables including projected free cash flows,
terminal value growth rates and discount rates. These variables were considered under different economic circumstances and an expected average resulted
in a recoverable amount for the single cash generating unit has been estimated at P12.7 billion (2020: 10.9 billion), the increase being attributed to the
incremental present value of cash flows that will be generated by capital projects that were commissioned during the year. The head room of P6.2 Billion
(2020:P1.2 billion). The head room reflects the value at which the recoverable amount has to decline before an impairment loss is recognised. At the
reporting  date, the head room is at 48% (2020:11%). Based on this assessment, there is no impairment recognised in the comparative financial periods.
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8 Leases (Corporation as lessee)

Net carrying amounts of right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets are included in the following line items:
2021 2020

Right of use assets                                                                                                 P'000 P'000

Opening Balance 47,547    57,757   
New Right-of Use assets 2,112      -        
Terminated leases (672)       -        
Depreciation for the year charged in profit or loss (11,249)  (10,210) 
Closing balance 37,738   47,547  

Reconcilliation of cost and accumulated depreciation
Cost/valuation 59,197    57,757   
Accumulated depreciation (21,459)  (10,210) 
Carrying amount at reporting date 37,738   47,547  

Lease liabilities

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

Current portion 13,079    9,277     
Non-current portion 29,937    41,690   
Total Liability 43,016   50,967  

Within one year 13,045    11,322   
Two to five years 36,059    49,346   
More than five years 22          -        
Total undiscounted liabilities at reporting date 49,126    60,668   
less future finance charges component (6,110)    (9,701)   
Lease liability at reporting date 43,016    50,967   

Reconciliation of movement in lease liabilities

Opening balance 50,967    -        
Additions to lease liabilities 2,112      57,757   
Finance costs charged in profit or loss 3,297      3,772     
Lease repayments recognised in statement of cash flows (12,208)  (10,562) 
Accrued rentals included in other payables (480)       -        
Terminated leases (672)       -        
Closing balance 43,016    50,967   

Low value and short term leases

The Corporation leases several assets which includes property. The lease terms range between 2 and 5
years (2020: 2 - 5 years).

Lease liabilities have been included in the non-current and current liabilities on the statement of financial 
position. 

The Corporation has applied the practical expedient in regard to the incremental borrowing rate by using
a rate of 7% to its lease portfolio as the leases have similar characteristics. The Corporation makes use
of hindsight to determine lease term on application of extension option. The exposure to interest rate risk
is evaluated in note 29.

Depreciation recognised on each class of right-of-use assets, is presented above. It includes depreciation
which has been expensed in the total depreciation charge in profit or loss as well as depreciation which
has been capitalised to the cost of other assets.

During the period, the Corporation expensed P2,313,882 (2020: P1,629,451) for short-term leases. This
relates to the lease of photocopiers for the Corporation in all its Business Centres in Botswana. 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities contractual 
undiscounted cash flows is as follows:
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2021 2020
P'000 P'000

9 Intangible assets 
Computer software costs
Cost
Balance at beginning of the year 38,804 38,804
Additions & Transfers from development expenditure (note 7) 2,153 -
Balance at end of the year 40,957 38,804

Amortisation
Balance at beginning of the year 36,338 33,884
Charged during the year 2,856 2,454
Balance at end of the year 39,194 36,338

Carrying amount 1,763         2,466     

10 Inventories
Chemicals 896 1,167
Spares and consumables 55,875 50,394
Provision for obsolete inventories (2,060) (1,171)

54,711 50,390
Provision for obsolete inventories
Opening balance (1,171) (1,171)
Charge to profit or loss (889) -          
Closing balance (2,060) (1,171)

11 Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables 1,017,978 801,173
Less provision for impairment (697,606) (461,747)

320,372 339,426
VAT receivable 103,170 -
Prepayments 319,744      73,529     

743,286 412,955

Trade receivables comprise of:
Business 133,035 108,066
Government department and Council 239,947 233,264
Domestic debtors 644,996 459,843

1,017,978  801,173 

Balance at 31 March 2020 70,597 239 461,747
Bad debts written off -              -                                   (238)
(Decrease)/Increase in allowance 
recognised in profit or loss 36,633 (239) 236,097

Balance at 31 March 2021 107,230 -                                   697,606
Effective ECL % 31 March 2020 65% 0.1% 58%
Effective ECL % 31 March 2021 81% 0% 69%

Loss allowance reconciliation for financial assets under IFRS 9

Due to the short term nature of the trade and other receivables, their carrying amount is considered to be
the same as their fair value. Refer to note 29(d) for detailed information about the impairment of trade
receivables and the Corporations exposure to credit risk. 

Trade receivables

Business TotalGovernment and Council

390,911
(238)

199,703

590,376
85%
92%

Domestic 
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12 Cash and cash equivalents 2021 2020
P'000 P'000

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: 
Current and call accounts 286,783 322,099
Petty cash 125 125
Short-term investments 1,247,246   1,338,188   

1,534,154  1,660,412  

Capital Bank 115,538 162,730
Botswana Savings Bank 283,775 252,869
Botswana Building Society 345,271 589,775
BANC ABC 354,697 332,814
Bank Gaborone 62,323 -
Standard Chartered Bank 85,642 -
TOTAL 1,247,246 1,338,188

13 Investments carried at amortised cost 2021 2020

P'000 P'000

Vunani (Previously named Stanlib) 15,933 129,054

African Alliance 18,395 131,725

BIFM - 130,166
34,328 390,945

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

14 Irredeemable capital
Balance at beginning and end of the year 752,738     752,738     

15 Government contribution - Water Sector Reforms

Balance at beginning of the year 4,104,627   4,104,627   
Balance at end of the year 4,104,627  4,104,627  

2021 2020
16 Government grants P'000 P'000

Revenue Grants
Opening balance 55,290 202,710
Cash grant received during the year 112,000 -
Recognised in income statement (167,290)    (147,420)    
Closing balance at end of the year -             55,290       

2021 2020
Capital Grants P'000 P'000
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,130,299 2,567,323
Received during the year 1,239,903 632,291
Vehicles received from Government 333 8,682
Amortisation of grant (88,155) (77,997)      
Balance at the end of year 4,282,380  3,130,299  

Short term investments consist of the following deposits held at the following banks:

These are contributions made to the corporation several years back for its operations to commence and they
are irredeemable.

Revenue grant relates to funds received from the Government of Botswana towards supplementing
expenditure by the Corporation on non-capital projects or not for acquisition of income generating assets.
The current year receipt relates to out-of-court settlement with a supplier whose contractual terms were on
void. 

Government contribution - This relates to net assets contributed by Government of Botswana acting in
capacity as owners of the Corporation. The balances are capital reserves and not recycled to profit or loss.

The Corporation holds highly liquid investments which can be redeemed on-demand and considered to have a 
insignificant exposure to interest and credit risk. The investments are classified as investments carried at
amortised cost.

The Corporation holds highly liquid investments which can be redeemed on-demand and considered to have
an insignificant exposure to interest and credit risk. The investments are classified as cash and cash
equivalents.
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16 Government grants (continued)

(255,445)  (77,997)    

8,387,007  7,290,216  

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

17 Borrowings and Interest reserve

Current borrowings

Foreign borrowings 5,889 7,968
Domestic Medium Term Note Bond 5,474 5,474

11,363 13,442

Non-current borrowings

Foreign borrowings 5,889 7,944
Domestic Medium Term Note Bond 205,000 205,000

210,889 212,944

Total Borrowings 222,252 226,386

Below is the European Investment Bank (EIB) loan denominated in ZAR

Foreign borrowings 

Loan 45 EIB (ZAR'000) 15,937 23,905

Interest reserve - EIB
Opening Balance 17,466       16,998       
Interest subsidy income - transfer 330            468            
Closing Balance 17,796      17,466      

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

Maturity of borrowings
Current 11,363 13,442
Between 1 and 2 years 5,889 7,944
Between 2 and 5 years 205,000 -             
Over 5 years -             205,000

222,252 226,386

Capital grants relate to funds and assets issued by the Government towards the infrastructure and other
capital projects. These are amortised to the statement of comprehensive in a manner consistent with
depreciation of the respective infrastructure or non-current assets. The amortisation reduces depreciation
charges in profit or loss.

The Domestic Medium Term Note (DMTN) Bond is unsecured. It carries an interest rate of 10.65% per annum
and is repayable in full in 2026.

The interest subsidy reserve relates to a subsidy on the EIB loan 45. In accordance with the agreement with
the EIB, the Corporation shall pay net interest on the daily balance of the loan balance at the interest rate
applicable reduced by an interest rate subsidy of 1.82%, provided that the interest payable shall at no time
fall below 3%. If the Corporation wishes to make withdrawal from this account it has to send details of
schemes to be financed and their projected financing plans. Only after approval from EIB will funds be
withdrawn from this account. Residual balance in this account at the end of the final repayment of the loan
shall be used by the Corporation for approved plans.

The foreign borrowings of ZAR 15,937,000 are unsecured and obtained from the European Investment Bank
(EIB) and is repayable in 2023 at an interest rate between 8 to 12% per annum.

Section 6.12 of the EIB agreement stipulates a debt service coverage (DSC) ratio of 1.5:1. The Corporation
did not comply with the convenant as debt coverage ratio for 31 March 2021 is -10.1:1 (2020 4:1) as a result
of the loss made in the current financial year.

Non-cash grants recognised in profit or loss (note 3)

Total Contributions by the Government through water sector 
reform, capital and revenue grants
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2021 2020
P'000 P'000

18 Consumer deposits 55,146             50,436        

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

19 Trade and other payables
Trade creditors 601,592            114,681       
Value added tax - 8,578           
Payroll provisions 47,625              152,700       
Contract retention 228,381            143,689       
Other accruals 113,581            83,499         
Audit fee accrual 2,500                1,641           

993,679 504,788

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

Gratuity provision
Opening balance 10,015 21,908
Charge for the current year 22,347 9,876
Payments made during the year (16,461)            (21,769)
Closing balance 15,901 10,015

Leave provision
Opening balance 14,067 21,471
Charge for the current year 43,786 25,439
Payments made during the year (26,129) (32,843)
Closing balance 31,724 14,067

Restructuring provision
Opening balance 128,618 -
Charge for the current year - 128,618
Payments made during the year (128,618) -
Closing balance - 128,618

Total provisions 47,625 152,700

2021 2020
(Restated)*

P'000 P'000
20 Taxation Balances

Deferred Taxation
Liability at beginning of the year 68,573              47,191         

Prior year overstatement (5,126) -              
Current year estimate (71,714) 21,382
Taxation recognised in profit or loss (76,840) 21,382

Balance at end of the year (asset) (8,267) 68,573
Analysed as follows;
Differences in tax and accounting depreciation 234,559            174,414       
Accruals and provision for credit losses (125,480)          (66,592)       
Tax loss (116,185)          (39,249)       
IFRS 16 Leases (1,161)              -
Liability (asset) at end of the year (8,267) 68,573

*See note 24 for details regarding restatement as a result of errors

As per IFRS 15, the corporation does not recognise proceeds from customers in relation to deposits that
are charged for initial connections as revenue. These are accounted for as a contract liability to match
against future refunds upon disconnection.

Payroll provisions include gratuity and leave pay. There were no restructuring provisions in the current
year.

Deferred tax liabilities (assets) are calculated based on the liability method using a principal tax rate of
22% (2020: 22%). The deferred tax asset has been recognised in full as management anticipate that the
Corporation will return to profitability within the future period allowable for roll forward of tax losses. The
future taxable profits and anticipated increases in taxable differences will be sufficient to recover the
deferred tax assets.

Trade and other payables are unsecured and usually paid within 30 days of recognition. The carrying 
amounts of trade and other payables are considered to be the same as their fair values.
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20 Taxation Balances (continued)
2021 2020

P'000 P'000
Tax (payable)/refund
Balance at beginning of the year 22,922 43,962
Income tax liability - -
(Refund)/Payments made during the year - (15,916)
Other tax refund adjusted - (5,124)
Closing balance 22,922 22,922

2021 2020
(Restated)*

21 Cash flows from operating activities P'000 P'000

Operating income after interest and tax (166,043) 49,923
Adjustment for
Depreciation and amortisation expense (notes 7, 8 ,9) 366,741 310,576       
WIP Impairment adjustment -                38,213         
Amortisation of revenue and capital grants (note 16) (255,445) (77,997)
Finance income  (note 5) (81,321) (89,438)
Finance costs (note 5) 25,570 26,672
Foreign exchange gain/loss (note 2, 4) 333 2,662
Loss / (profit) on sale of assets (470) (4,873)
Tax refund received - 15,916
Income tax charged in profit or loss (76,840) 21,382

(187,475) 293,036

Adjusted for working capital movements
Movement in inventories (4,321) (5,439)
Movement in trade and other receivables (330,331) (9,548)
Movement in consumer deposits 4,710 6,866
Movement in trade and other payables 488,891 (120,533)

158,949 (128,654)

Cash (to)/from operating activities (28,526) 164,382

22 Commitments and contingent liabilities

Operating lease commitments

Capital commitments

2021 2020
(Restated)*

P'000 P'000

Approved and contracted for 8,077,056      2,200,357    
Approved but not yet contracted for 4,210,001      1,330,557    

12,287,057  3,530,914   

Capital expenditure approved at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial statements are as
follows:

The commitments are expected to be financed from internally generated funds, external borrowings and
funding from the Government of the Republic of Botswana under the Emergency/ Drought projects.

Operating lease commitments have been disclosed in note 8.

*See note 24 for details regarding the restatement as a result of errors  and note 25 for details regarding 
the reclassification of cash and cash equivalents

Tax refund relates to quarterly income tax payments made during the year based on management accounts
and withholding tax on interest from investments. The refund arises due to final tax assessment being lower
or nil and therefore the payments made during the year become refundable. There were no refunds during
the year, however Management anticipates the funds to be recoverable and not impaired.
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23 Related party transactions

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

Remuneration of key entity personnel:
Salaries and other short term employee benefits 17,290         11,035          
Terminal benefits -              1,069            
Board fees 233              538               

17,523       12,642         

24 Correction of material error in recognition of project costs

Statement of Financial Position (extract)

31 March 
2020

Increase/ 
(Decrease)

31 March 
2020 

(Restated)
P'000 P'000 P'000

Property, plant and equipment (Dev. Expenditure) 7,188,722      (32,917)        7,155,805      
Deferred Tax Liability (75,815)         7,242           (68,573)         
Net assets 6,582,378   (25,675)      6,556,703   

Retained Earnings (807,547)       25,675         (781,872)       
Total equity (5,682,378)  25,675       (5,656,703)  

Statement of Comprehensive Income (extract)
Water treatment and distribution costs (1,193,495)    (16,228)        (1,209,723)    
Administration and other expenses (429,590)       (16,689)        (446,279)       
Profit before income tax 104,222       (32,917)      71,305         

Income tax (28,624)         7,242           (21,382)         
Profit for the year 75,598         (25,675)      49,923         

Other comprehensive income for the period -                -              -                
Total comprehensive income 75,598         (25,675)      49,923         

The Corporation is 100% owned by the Government of Botswana. Related parties comprise the Government 
of Botswana, Key Management and Board members. Transactions and account balances with the
Government of Botswana and government related entities are identifiable within disclosures relating to
receivables and government grants.
A list of members of the Board is disclosed on the front page of the report. Key entity personnel comprise
of corporate management disclosed on the front page of the report. The total remuneration of Directors and
other members of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Key entity personnel comprise of executive management as disclosed on General Information of the
financial statements.

Costs incurred related mainly to professional work on identification of areas of asset repairs and restoration
rather than development of new infrastructure or increasing the original capacity of the existing
infrastructure. This meant that the costs were not directly part of the larger projects where assets were
constructed, or the end product was an item of property, plant and equipment, and therefore purely
administrative and expense in nature. Consequently, these costs did not meet the asset recognition criteria
under IAS 16 and therefore, should not have been capitalised and classified as work in progress reported
within property, plant and equipment but rather expensed in the period incurred. 

During the current reporting period, Management carried out its annual assessment of project viability
which includes reviewing the recoverability of project related costs recognised as work in progress. This
process in-turn led to identification of a material error relating to capitalisation of project-related costs
incurred during the period ended 31 March 2020 which resulted in a restatement of the prior year financial
statements. 

Consistent with the applicable reporting framework and the Corporation's accounting policies regarding
prior period errors, the error has been corrected in the comparative financial statements. Management also
assessed that there was no further impact of this error on the opening balances for the restated period. 

The error has been corrected by restating each of the affected financial statement line items for the prior
periods as follows:
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24 Correction of material error in recognition of project costs (continued)

31 March 
2020

Increase/ 
(Decrease)

31 March 
2020 

(Restated)
P'000 P'000 P'000

Statement of Cashflows (extract)
Property, plant and equipment (Dev. Expenditure) 575,802         (32,917)        542,885         
Cash flows from/(to) operating activities (197,299)       32,917         (164,382)       
Cash and cash equivalents 1,660,412   -             1,660,412   

25 Reclassification of cash and cash equivalents

The impact of the change in classification has had the following changes to presentation:

Impact on the Statement of financial position:
As at As at

31 March 
2020

31 March 
2019

P'000 P'000

Cash and cash equivalents as previously stated 2,051,357    1,802,847      
Reclassification of investments in money market funds (390,945)      (376,755)       
Cash and cash equivalents (reclassified) 1,660,412  1,426,092   

Investments held at amortised cost (reclassified) 390,945     376,755       

Impact on the Statement of cash flows
2020

P'000
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net cash used in investing activities (previously presented) (506,946)       
Net purchases of investments at amortised cost (14,190)         
Net cash used in investing activities (521,136)     

The change in classification does not impact on the reported (loss)/profit. 

26 Compliance with the Water Utilities Corporation Act (Chapter - 74:02)
The Corporation has to comply with the requirements of Section 19 of the Water Utilities Corporation Act
(Chapter 74:02) which requires the Corporation to conduct its affairs on sound commercial lines and to
produce a net operating income by which a reasonable return can be measured. During the year, the
Corporation has reported an operating loss of P242.9 million (2020: Profit P71.3 million). Management
considers the loss as a consequence of significant increase in expected credit losses from trade receivables
and decline in revenue consumption particularly from the business customer base due to Covid 19
pandemic. The shortcoming on meeting the statutory requirement has been duly communicated with the
regulator and progressive strategic initiatives are under consideration and management anticipate to
progress towards compliance as Covid 19 eases.

International Accounting Standards 7, Statement of cash flows requires the presentation of the inflows and
outflows of cash and cash equivalents during the reporting period and to present a reconciliation of the
cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period to the cash and cash equivalents at the
end of the period. Cash equivalents are investments that have a short-term maturity period of less than 3
months, can be converted into known amounts of cash and have an insignificant risk of change in value. 

The Corporation previously classified its investments in money market funds as part of its cash equivalents
for the purposes of the statement of financial position and the statement of cash flows. The Corporation
assesses its investments in money markets funds by “looking to” the units of the fund and its nature, in
order to determine whether the cash equivalents definition has been met. Such an assessment was
performed at 31 March 2021 and it was concluded that investments in money market funds did not meet
the cash equivalents definition. Such investments are material to the financial statements and has been
reclassified from cash and cash equivalents to investments at amortised cost. 
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27 Going concern considerations

28 Events after the reporting date

On 8 October 2021, a cautionary statement was issued by the Botswana Stock Exchange indicating that the
Bond may be delisted for failure by the Corporation to file the audited financial statements by 30
September 2021. The BSE regulations provides for a grace period of up to 31 October 2021 for the
Corporation to submit the financial statements. The Corporation has taken all necessary steps to ensure
that the financial statements are submitted without further delay. 

Management has considered that Covid-19 pandemic has led to an economic downturn with a multiply
impact decline on recoverability of receivables, lower than expected revenue growth and a fall value in use
of non-financial assets. The Government issued a directive at the beginning of the pandemic that there will
be no disconnection of water supply to all customers, and further directed that all customers that had been
disconnected due to non-payment be reconnected to ensure availability of water. This resulted in an
increase in consumer receivables and subsequently an increase in impairment compared to the previous
year.                                                                                                                                  
Despite these material uncertainties, the strategic importance, occupational and environmental health
considerations that are inherent in the mandate of the Corporation allow management to conclude that the
Corporation will continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Corporation has noted
that the economy is generally recovering following the rollout of the vaccinations countrywide. The
Corporation has sufficient liquid assets to settle obligations as they fall due and the Government of
Botswana, through the Ministry of Land Management, Water and Sanitation Services has indicated that
they will continue to support the Corporation towards financing infrastructure and operational budget
requirements to enable achievement of its mandate. Such support has been realised in the current year
and after the reporting date.
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29 Financial risk management 

a)  Market risk 

(i)  Foreign exchange risk 

(ii)  Interest rate risk and cash flow risk

(iii)  Interest rate risk and cash flow risk  - IFRS 16

A 1% increase in Incremental Borrowing Rate (IBR) used in the model assuming the lease term remain
static, would decrease the Corporation’s profit and equity by P335,525 (2020: P397, 543) . A decrease in
interest rates by a similar margin would result in equal and opposite effect on the profit for the year. 

A 1% increase in interest rate in borrowings would decrease the Corporation’s profit and equity by
P1,733,566 (2020: P1,765,811), short-term deposit investments would increase the Corporation’s profit
and equity by P9,996,277 (2020: P13,487,237) while an increase in investments carried at amortised cost
would increase the Corporation's profit and equity by P267,758 (2020: P3,049,371). A decrease in
interest rates by a similar margin would result in equal and opposite effect on the profit for the year.  

At 31 March 2021, the Corporation’s foreign exchange exposure was to ZAR borrowings of R15,936,871
(2020: R23,905,307). If the Botswana Pula (BWP) had strengthened by 1% against foreign currencies,
the effect would have resulted in an impact of P105,188 (2020: P157,782) on the Corporation’s profit and
equity. A 1% weakening of the ZAR would have equal but opposite effect. 

The Corporation's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, market risks, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Corporation's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Corporation's financial performance. Risk
management is carried out under policies approved by the board. The board provides written principles for
overall risk management, as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk,
interest rate risk and credit risk.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in the market prices. Market risks reflect interest rate risk and other price risks.

The Corporation is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to the South African Rand (ZAR). Foreign exchange risk arises from borrowings and other
commercial transactions. Management has set up a policy to require the Corporation to manage its foreign
exchange risk against functional currency. To manage foreign exchange risk arising from those
transactions, the Corporation ensures that it maintains adequate funds in foreign currency in its bank
accounts and negotiates terms and conditions in the loan agreements with the lenders. Foreign exchange
risk arises when commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is not the entity’s functional currency.

The Corporation’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings and short-term deposit investments.
Borrowings and short-term deposit investments at variable rates expose the Corporation to cash flow
interest rate risk. Borrowings and short-term deposit investments issued at fixed rates expose the
Corporation to fair value interest rate risk. The Corporation maintains its borrowings at both variable and
fixed rates while short-term deposit investments are maintained at fixed interest rates as agreed with the
counterparties. During the 2020/2021 financial year, the Corporation’s borrowings at variable rates were
denominated in Rand (ZAR) while borrowings and short-term deposit investments at fixed rates were
denominated in Pula (BWP). The risk is managed by the Corporation by spreading the short term
investment portfolio across various financial institutions to maximise returns.
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29 Financial risk management (continued)

Less than Between Between 2 
1 year 1 and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 years
P'000 P'000 P'000 P'000

At 31 March 2021
Borrowings 11,363 5,889 205,000 -
Consumer deposits - 55,146 - -
Lease liabilities 13,079 - 29,937 -
Accounts payable 829,973 - - -

854,415           61,035                234,937         -                     
At 31 March 2020
Borrowings 13,442 7,944 - 205,000
Consumer deposits -                  50,436 - -
Lease liabilities 9,277 - 41,690 -
Accounts payable 258,370 - - -

281,089 58,380 41,690 205,000
c) Capital risk 

2021 2020
(Restated)*

P'000 P'000
Total long - term debt (note 17) 222,252 226,386
Total capital and reserves 5,490,660 5,656,704
Debt : equity ratio 4% 4%

Total interest bearing borrowings (note 17) 222,252 226,386
Property, plant and equipment (note 7) 8,649,964 7,155,805
Ratio of interest bearing debt to property, plant & equip. 2.57% 3.16%

*See note 24 for details the regarding restatement as a result of errors

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Corporation’s liquidity reserves (comprises cash and cash
equivalents - note 12) on the basis of expected cash flow. This is generally carried out by management in
accordance with practice and limits set by the Board.

The table below analyses the Corporation’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the

remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are

the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

The Corporation is a parastatal established by an Act of Parliament. The Corporation is supported by its
shareholder, Government of Botswana. The Corporation’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns and benefits for stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Consistent with others in the industry, the Corporation
monitors capital on the basis of the debt to equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as long term debt divided by total
equity as shown in the statement of financial position.

d)  Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial 
loss to the Corporation. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, investments carried at amortised cost 
and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to consumers, including accounts 
receivable. Credit risk is limited to carrying value of financial assets as at 31 March 2021.

b)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Corporation will not be able to generate sufficient cash flows to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises on borrowings, consumer deposits, trade payables and
lease liability. Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, and the availability of
funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.

The Corporation considers a debt equity ratio of less than 10% to be acceptable. This is reviewed annually after 
considering market conditions and the growth goals of the Corporation. The Corporation regularly monitors and 
reports on debt covenants to financial institutions.

The ratio of interest bearing debt to the net book value of property, plant and equipment is calculated as:
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29 Financial risk management  (continued)

2021 2020
P'000 P'000

Cash and Cash Equivalents    1,534,154    1,660,412 
Investments carried at amortised cost         34,328       390,945 

   1,017,978       801,173 
Total 2,586,460 2,852,530  

Key assumptions used in determination of expected credit losses 

2021

Loss 
rate

Loss 
allowance

(P000)

Balance as 
at 

31/03/2021
(P000)

Loss rate
Loss 

allowance
(P000)

Balance as 
at 

31/03/202
1

(P000)
Performing

0 - 30 days 53.19% 22,797 51,224 35.17% 5,869 28,666
Non-Performing

31 - 60 days 78.37% 35,605 53,610 66.85% 9,924 45,529
61 - 90 days 95.30% 29,667 37,595 89.09% 6,662 36,329

Credit impaired
Over 90 days 100.00% 502,307 502,567 100.00% 84,775 587,082

590,376  644,996       107,230          697,606     
Government and Councils debtors** -             
Total Loss allowance/Expected credit loss 697,606     

133,035     

18,203

22,908
10,122

81,802

 Maximum Exposure

Trade Receivables

Deposits are payable by consumers before water is connected and overdue accounts are disconnected. Accounts
receivable are settled in cash, cheques or electronic transfer. Accounts receivable outstanding were reviewed
and considered for impairment provision in accordance with IFRS 9- Financial Instruments. Trade receivables
consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. On-going
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate,
customers are disconnected until they settle.

In accordance with the simplified approach adopted, the loss allowance on trade receivables is determined as
the lifetime expected credit losses on trade receivables. These lifetime expected credit losses for debtors
excluding Government debtors are estimated using a provision matrix, which is presented below. The provision
matrix is a probability-weighted model which applies an expected loss percentage, based on the net write-off
history experienced on receivables, to each ageing category of receivables at the end of each month in order to
calculate the total provision to be raised on the receivable balances. It also incorporates forward looking
information relating to country gross domestic product and other macroeconomic factors affecting the
customers' ability to settle the outstanding amount as at the reporting date. Customers are considered to have
defaulted when their outstanding balances extend beyond the 30 days credit period.

The Corporation applies a provision matrix to determine Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on Trade receivables. The
receivables are analysed on past due basis within customer type, that is, Domestic, Business and Government
classifications. This grouping is under the assumption that customers within the classification have similar credit
risk characteristics. The assumptions and judgements applied includes the determination of probability of
default (PD) and the determination of Loss Given Default (LGD).

The determination of Probability of Default (PD) is based on historical defaults as estimated by flow rates
indicating receivables that migrate from the earliest past due category to the subsequent and ultimately the
post 90 days grouping. The historical flow rates are adjusted to reflect trends in debtor collection in the
subsequent period prior to finalisation of financial statements in addition to forward looking factor of forecast
GDP.The Loss Given Default (LGD) is the amount of final loss of receivable that has displayed significant
increase in credit risk taking into consideration any recoveries received once a receivable goes into default
expressed as a percentage of total exposure at default.

Management performs regular reviews of gross receivables for unusual balances (non-genuine debtors) that
could be indicative of excess estimation and receivables attributable to reconnections in line with the
Government of Botswana's directive for connecting defaulting customers as part of the nation-wide efforts to
curb occupational health crisis during the Covid-19 pandemic. Such exceptions are excluded from the gross
receivables that are subjected to the ECL computations. Receivables with credit balances are also isolated from
the ECL computations and reclassified to trade and other payables.

Domestic debtors Business debtors

Total
 loss 

allowance

The schedules below summaries the credit risk as represented by the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) from the
provision matrix
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29 Financial risk management  (continued) - credit risk

2020

Loss rate
Loss 

allowance
(P000)

Balance 
as at 

31/03/20
20 (P000)

Loss rate
Loss 

allowance(P0
00)

Performing
0 - 30 days 47.82% 22,695 47,463 26.57% 10,066 37,889 32,761

Non-Performing
31 - 60 days 66.43% 27,128 40,842 58.69% 6,975 11,885 34,103
61 - 90 days 96.06% 19,212 20,000 91.55% 5,938 6,487 25,150

Credit impaired
Over 90 days 100.00% 298,287 298,287 100.00% 38,330 38,330 336,617

367,322   406,592  61,309           94,591  428,631   

Government and Councils debtors** 102          

COVID 19 Impact 33,014     

Total Loss allowance/Expected credit loss 461,747   

2021
Government and Councils debtors**

PD LGD
Coverage 
ratio

Impairment
Balance as at 
31/03/2021 

(P000)

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%                 -             239,947 

2020
Government and Councils debtors**

PD LGD
Coverage 
ratio

Impairment
Balance as at 
31/03/2020 

(P000)

0.10% 49.29% 0.050%         101,662           206,252 

An alternative methodology is used for the government and council (“government”) segment since the Government
of Botswana has fulfilled historical obligations with WUC. As such, a provisioning matrix method would not be
appropriate as it would reflect no impairment since no debt has been written-off. Instead, a method to estimate the
probability of default is used in management’s calculation.

A benchmarked Probability of Default (PD) x Loss Given Default (LGD) approach has been used to determine the
impairment to be held for the government segment. Given the short-term nature of the trade receivables, a 12
month PD has been used. A range of benchmarked LGDs have been used to determine a possible range for the
impairment and the mid point was considered more appropriate.

Government 
and Councils

Government 
and Councils

The schedules below summaries the credit risk as represented by the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) from the provision 
matrix

Domestic debtors Business debtors

Total loss 
allowance

Balance as at 
31/03/2020 

(P000)

In regard to Government debtors, management has assessed the default risk  to be zero because the credit risk of 
Government of Botswana was evaluated based on its historical default rate with no instance of default on bills 
relating to the Corporation. 
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29 Financial risk management  (continued) 

Financial instruments by category 2021 2020
P'000 P'000

       1,017,978           801,173 
           34,328 390,945          
       1,534,154 1,660,412       

2,586,460      2,852,530      

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Borrowings 222,252 226,386
Consumer deposits 55,146 50,436
Lease liabilities 43,016 50,967
Trade and other payables 829,973 258,370

1,150,387 586,159

(ii) Impairment of Other Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalents and investments carried at amortised cost are placed with highly reputable financial
institutions only, these include domestic subsidiaries to international institutions. The Corporation regularly
monitors the outcome of the regulatory inspections and reports with respect to these counterparties. The
Corporation is not aware of any facts or circumstances which would indicate that the institutions where cash
and cash equivalents were held at year-end exposed the Corporation to levels of credit risk beyond those
normally associated with such relationships.

Trade and other receivables
Investments carried at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial assets at amortised cost




